

UNIVERSITY OF GUAM UNIBETSEDÅT GUÅHAN

Board of Regents UOG Station, Mangilao, Guam 96923 Telephone: (671) 735-2995 Fax: (671) 734-2296

Regular Meeting Minutes February 13, 2020

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Regents (BOR) was called to order by BOR Chairperson Elvin Y. Chiang on February 13, 2020 at 5:32 p.m., in AV Room #1, University of Guam Robert F. Kennedy (RFK) Library, Tan Siu Lin Building. Notice of such meeting have been duly and regularly provided by the BOR.

Chairperson Chiang introduced the newest board member, Regent Agapito (Pete) Diaz, and welcomed him to the Board. Regent Diaz thanked the community for the opportunity to provide service as a member of the BOR. He noted that he is a product of the University by attaining his bachelor's in Mathematics and attending the Pre-engineering program. He added he is heavily involved in the School of Engineering project.

QUORUM:

Elvin Chiang Mari Flor Herrero Jerold Filush Liza Provido Sandra McKeever Francis Hezel Lesley Leon Guerrero Agapito "Pete" Diaz Mebric Navisaga

ALSO PRESENT: Thomas W. Krise Anthony Camacho Christine Mabayag David S. Okada Chairperson Vice Chairperson Treasurer Member Member Member Member Member Member

Executive Secretary General Counsel Recording Secretary CPO/Interim Chief of Staff

2.0 MEETING MINUTES

2.1 Regular Meeting Minutes of November 15, 2019

Chairperson Chiang asked if there were any corrections or discussion regarding the regular meeting minutes as presented. Regent Leon Guerrero moved to approve subject to corrections, which was duly seconded by Regent McKeever. The motion carried.

3.0 CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT

Chairperson Chiang welcomed everyone to the February Regular BOR meeting. As the new Chairperson for the Board of Regents, he stated he looks forward to continuing work with the President and the University as we address many actions together. He stated that this is the time of year where we will be looking at the budget for 2021 and review the Para Hulo initiatives as proposed by the President. He also added that in the April 2020 meeting, the BOR will be voting to confirm officers for the Board, review

the Board schedule for AY 2020-2021, and validate committee member assignments, among other important actions.

He then took the time to reflect back and express condolences and requested a moment of silence for the loss of several family members of the UOG Community since the last meeting.

Nario H. Sangueza passed away November 23, 2019. He was the uncle of Dr. Cheryl Sangueza, Associate Professor of the School of Education.

Dr. Jose Quinene Cruz passed away January 6, 2020. Dr. Cruz served as the fifth President of the University of Guam from 1983-1987. Dr. Cruz began his UOG career as a part-time assistant professor and instructor of public administration and management in the College of Business and Public Administration from 1979-83. After his term as President, Dr. Cruz remained with the University serving as a Regents professor, associate professor, and adjunct faculty until 2002. He was the husband of Dr. Teofila Sholing Perez Cruz who served as a faculty member in the UOG School of Nursing and Health Sciences and as a project leader on the U54 cancer grant projects.

Jimmie L. Green passed away December 27, 2019. He was the father of Dr. Jackysha Green, Assistant Professor of Education at the School of Education.

Elizabeth Grace Sablan Viegas passed away January 18, 2020. She was the wife of the late George J. Viegas, who served as Plant Manager in the UOG Plant Management Division from 1982 until his retirement in 1995. The late Mr. Viegas was instrumental in obtaining funding for the UOG Calvo Field House and for his bringing about its successful construction. He was later recognized for all his efforts in 2018 at a Replacement Plaque Ceremony to memorialize the builders of the Field House.

4.0 PRESIDENT'S REPORT

President Krise gave the President's report, a copy of which is attached.

5.0 REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES

5.1 Academic, Personnel, and Tenure (AP&T) Committee

Acting Chairperson Regent Leon Guerrero reported that the AP&T Committee met on February 5th and presents the proposed resolutions for the board's approval.

5.1.1 Resolution No. 20-01, Relative to Updating the Drug Free Workplace Policy of the University of Guam

Regent Leon Guerrero introduced Resolution No. 20-01 and moved to approve, which was duly seconded by Regent McKeever. She briefly read a portion of the resolution explaining the purpose. The motion carried.

5.1.2 Resolution No. 20-02, Relative to Approving the Updated Salary Pay Scale for Administrators with Revised Administrator Position Descriptions based on the University of Guam Para Hulo Strategic Plan and Revised Organizational Chart

Regent Leon Guerrero introduced Resolution No. 20-02 and moved to approve, which was duly seconded by Regent McKeever. She briefly read a portion of the resolution explaining the purpose. Regent Provido and Regent Filush noted that their respective committees also endorsed the resolution. The motion carried.

5.2 Student Affairs, Scholarship, Alumni Relations and Honorary Degree (SASARHD) Committee

5.2.1 SASARHD Update

Acting Chairperson Regent Provido reported in the absence of Regent Herrero, that the SASARHD Committee met on February 10th to review and discuss Resolution Nos 20-02 and 20-04 and concurred with the resolutions being presented.

5.3 Investment Committee

Regent Filush, reported that the Investment Committee met on February 7th and a quorum was present.

5.3.1 Investment Update

He stated that the investment committee first voted to ratify decisions from its meeting on November 22, 2019 during the Asia Pacific Association for Fiduciary Studies conference in Manila and a subsequent portfolio review meeting with advisor, Raymond James, at their offices on December 18, 2019. The decisions were to:

- 1. Sell the entire Tortoise Master Limited Partnership investment and reduce the Garcia Hamilton Core Fixed Income investment from 20% to 15% of the portfolio.
- With the proceeds of the above, purchase investments in Blackstone Private Markets, First Trust Low Duration Opportunities ETF and Lazard Global Infrastructure which will be allocated at 2.5%, 5% and 5%, respectively, of the portfolio.
- 3. Rebalance the portfolio upon the conclusion on the above changes.

The investment committee then met with the representatives from the advisor to:

- 1. Discuss the performance of the endowment fund. The Market Value of the fund at February 6 was \$27.6 million. The increase of \$1.2 million from November 13 is in line with the improvements in the financial markets, especially the rise in equities. Raymond James suggested that the committee consider sending Notices of Placement On Watch List to Renaissance Investment Management and Franklin Templeton as the performance of the funds in the portfolio has not met expectation over the last several quarters. The advisor was not suggesting a change at this time and will report further at the next committee meeting. The investment committee voted to approve sending the letters, as drafted by the advisor, to the respective fund contacts and instructed Randall Wiegand, VP of Administration & Finance to do so.
- 2. Provide suggested updates to the University's Investment Policy Statement. The advisor highlighted the changes and a discussion with the committee ensued. The chair asked that the VP of Administration & Finance provide the committee any necessary updates to Section IV Spending Policy in light of the fact the Land Grant portion of the Fund is approaching the value required to allow spending on land grant items. It was decided that the committee members would review the proposed changes by the advisor and also the VP's recommendations for vote at the next meeting.

The investment committee met with the representatives of the Student Investment Club to review their portfolio's performance. The value had decreased nearly \$2,500 to \$66,500. The decrease had been expected as the Club was holding nearly \$13,100 in cash which will be invested in the next quarter and a change in investments from just growth stocks to a more balanced portfolio. The discussion then turned to the Club members' attendance at the recent annual Asia Pacific Association for Fiduciary Studies conference in Manila and also their favorable placement in a competitive event with 20 other colleges from the Philippines.

5.4 Budget, Finance, and Audit (BFA) Committee

Regent Filush noted that the BFA Committee met on February 7th and a quorum was present.

5.4.1 Financial Update

Regent Filush reported that as of January 24, 2020, the GovGuam payments from Department of Administration (DOA) are current to the extent that 96% of the UOG Operating Fund, Special Appropriation Fund and Agency Fund allotments have been paid as of this date. While it is much easier for the finance department to plan expenditures now that the allotments are current, the University continues to struggle due to reduced appropriations from the Legislature.

The preliminary December 31, 2019 cash basis financial statements reflected income of \$1.2 million versus a loss of \$5.9 million in the prior year. The primary changes are the nearly \$4.2 million increase in collections from the DOA as they are now current and \$1.3 million of investment income versus a loss of \$2.6 million last year. The actual performance will change when converted to accrual basis. All significant differences were explained to the satisfaction of the Committee members.

An update was given relative to the annual audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2019. The audit has been completed but the University is still waiting for the Government of Guam retirement plan adjustment and hopes to receive that in the next month. The VP of Administration & Finance indicated there were no significant adjustments or findings as a result of the audit.

5.4.2 Collections Report

Regent Filush reported that the collections on student loans was \$122,500 at December 31, which is 41% of the annual budget of \$300,000.

5.4.3 **Procurement Transactions and Contracts Report**

Regent Filush noted that there were several procurement transactions and contracts of over \$100K entered into during November and December. The Committee discussed the items on the listing and all questions were explained to the satisfaction of the Committee members.

5.4.4 Resolution No. 20-03, Relative to Approving the FY2021 General Operations Budget and Special Appropriations Budgets

Regent Filush introduced Resolution No. 20-03 and moved to approve, which was duly seconded by Regent Hezel. He stated that the proposed general operations budget reflects the amount of revenues and expenditures required for the University to operate at the level to offer all the necessary programs and degrees as reflected in the strategic plan and in facilities that are fully repaired and maintained to provide the appropriate learning environment for the students. Brief discussion followed. The motion carried.

5.4.5 Resolution No. 20-04, Relative to Approving the Student Financial Assistance Program FY2021 Budget

Regent Filush introduced Resolution No. 20-04 and moved to approve, which was duly seconded by Regent McKeever. He briefly explained the purpose of the resolution. The motion carried.

5.4.6 Resolution No, 20-05, Relative to Modifying the UOG Procurement Regulations to Allow for Blanket Purchase Agreements

Regent Filush introduced Resolution No. 20-05 and moved to approve, which was duly seconded by Regent McKeever. He briefly explained the purpose of the resolution. The motion carried.

5.5 Physical Facilities Committee

Regent Provido reported that the Committee met on February 10th. A copy of the Physical Facilities report is attached.

5.5.1 Facilities Management and Services Update

Regent Provido gave a brief report on the Facilities Management and Services (FMS) projects:

School of Engineering and Student Success Center: Both projects are currently on hold with the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) pending their approval on the loan re-obligation.

Cultural Repository: Reliable Builders, Inc is the contractor selected, pending contract negotiations.

International Dorm: Is pending a Private-Public-Partnership (PPP) report.

Water and Environmental Research Institute (WERI), Deskubre Building, and School of Health (SOH): These projects are being submitted under the United States Economic Development Administration (US EDA) grant.

Bordallo Expansion to Micronesian Area Research Center (MARC)/Robert F. Kennedy (RFK) Library: This is an expansion to archive donated historical documents and articles from former Congresswoman Madeleine Bordallo, who will be donating funds for the expansion. The project is under preliminary conceptual review.

She further reported on other ongoing and future projects.

6.0 AD HOC REPORT: ENDOWMENT FOUNDATION (EF) UPDATE

There was no update provided by the UOG EF.

7.0 OPEN PRESENTATION (3 Minute Limit per Person)

Chairperson Chiang opened the floor for open presentations.

Dr. Ronald McNinch, SBPA Faculty, discussed several items with the Board.

In his role as a Guam Department of Education Board Member, he stated that Public Law 17GCA 16A regarding the Joint Board, noted that for the past year the Board of Education has attempted to have the law removed. He noted that the law requires the UOG, GCC, and GDOE Boards to meet formally twice a year, which he says is viewed as a vestigial type of law. He added that a major function of the Board is the Teacher Certification and that there is now a separate function. He further stated that if there is a need for the Joint Board to meet, then it should be done collegially without a legal mandate to do so.

He added he is a member of the National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE), and that the trend on NASBE is dual enrollment. He stated that there should be more college classes offered at high school sites, which would extend learning opportunities for people in various villages and mainly for the purposes of general education.

He also discussed the Senior Citizens/Over 55 Program and noted that the UOG Fact Book indicates that only between 3 to 12 senior citizens take classes at UOG and that we should consider waiving fees and allow them to take one class per semester. He feels if we pursue the senior citizens market and open up adult education opportunities, it will probably greatly broaden the support in the community for UOG.

Dr. McNinch ended by stating that every Regent on the Board can nominate a Regent Emeritus and that there is a good number of former regents for this honor.

8.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION

8.1 None

There was no Executive Session held.

9.0 VOTING FILE

9.1 None

There were no items to vote on.

10.0 PASS OUT BOR SCHEDULE OF MEETING FOR AY2020-2021

The AY2020-2021 BOR schedule was passed out for informational and review purposes only.

11.0 ADJOURNMENT

Regent Filush moved that the meeting be adjourned, which was duly seconded by Regent Herrero and passed. Chairperson Chiang adjourned the meeting at 6:29p.m., Chamorro Standard Time.

Elvin Y. Chiang, Chairperson

ATTESTED:

- 4/2

Thomas W. Krise, Ph.D., Executive Secretary

20200213 BOR Meeting President's Report

Para Hulo' Strategic Plan Launch in two weeks on Friday, 28 Feb at 1100

• I'm pleased to report that one action item of the plan has already been accomplished: UOG is now designated a "Military Friendly Campus"

With your approval of the position descriptions, the new Org Chart will go into effect:

- Dr Enriquez will become Senior Vice President and Provost
- Her direct reports, Dee LG, Dr Troy McVey, and Dr Rachael LG will become Vice Provosts for their respective portfolios
- Dr Rachael will now have charge of most of the principal research units such as ML, WERI, CIS and Cancer Research Center, while also chairing the Research Council which gathers together all the research units including those that remain under specific colleges and schools
- Randy Wiegand will add Chief Business Officer to his VPAF title
- Dave Okada will become Chief of Staff and Board Liaison
- Jim Hollyer will become Chief Planning Officer
- Ann LG and her Auxiliary Services will join the new Marketing and Communications Team with Jonas Macapinlac as Chief Marketing & Comm Officer
- Athletic Director Doug Palmer will join the EMSS team, led by DOCTOR Lawrence Camacho
- Carlos Taitano will lead the new office of Global Learning and Engagement, which will include a new Events Office led by Norm Analista, who will take on that responsibility in addition to his existing role as Director of Development and Alumni Affairs
- I can also announce the appointment of Anthony Camacho, JD as the new General Counsel and Edlyn Dalisay as the new Risk Officer

In other news,

- 1. UOG received 5 commendations from its recent Interim Report by the WASC Senior College and University Commission related to successful progress in the institution's data coding and data management, progress on improving its academic program review, and student success--thanks to Dr Anita and to Vice Provost Dee LG for their leadership on this important matter--5 commendations on an interim report is a cause for celebration!
- 2. Dr Anita was nominated to serve as a Commissioner on the WASC Senior College and University Commission
- **3.** UOG has achieved its highest first year Freshmen retention rate of 79%, higher than the national average of 75%. UOG has also improved its degree completion rate since 2016, from 26% to 39%.
- 4. Thanks to the Guam Basketball Federation and support from the Lt Gov, the Field House floor has been refinished, new LED lights have been installed which should reduce our electric bills, give us brighter lights, and ones that turn on right away without having to warm up
- **5.** Gov Lou LG officially launched the Guam Green Growth (G3) Initiative with 9 working groups (you are a member). UOG is represented across all groups.
- 6. UOG launched its Academic Leadership Program designed to build capacity for future leaders on campus.
- 7. The new makerspace at the Student Center was launched, sponsored by the Guam Army National Guard, the Guam Small Business Development Center, the School of Business

and Public Administration, and the Enrollment Management and Student Success Division.

- **8.** Progress has been made on implementation of the BOR-Union Agreement, including the formation of both CFES and the Promotion & Tenure work groups.
- **9.** We also have made progress in various grant, loan and building projects—we hope to have announcements in time for the next BOR meeting
- **10.** UOG hosted a group of 7 senators for a campus tour and briefing on both bright spots and challenges with our budget situation
- 11. Two weeks later, we had an oversight hearing before the Legislature—thanks to Chairman Chiang, Vice Chairwoman Herrero, and Regent Felix for attending, along with a host of UOG leaders—the hearing gave us the opportunity to highlight our budget challenges—especially the decline in support for UOG basic appropriation as well as the Student Financial Aid Program—we in UOG leadership positions will continue to make the case for public investment in UOG and we appreciate the help of all Tritons in making the case
- 12. Thanks to Dr Claret Ruane of SBPA and her students, we now have an Economic Impact Study to help make that case for UOG's high value to Guam and all of Micronesia;
- 13. Highlights include:
 - **1.** UOG generates \$12 million more in tax revenue than we received in the current year's budget
 - 2. UOG boosted Guam's economy, measured by nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP), by \$213 million. This translates to
 - 1. 3.6% of the \$5.92 billion measure of Guam's economy in 2018 (the latest data available);
 - 2. 2.47 times UOG's total expenditure of \$86 million
 - **3.** 7.78 times the \$27.4 million budget appropriated to UOG by the Guam Legislature
 - **3.** UOG's research generates more than 120 full-time jobs funded entirely by prestigious research grants
 - **4.** And 88% of UOG's purchases are made at local vendors, with only 12% directly from off-island vendors
- 14. I thank all the Regents and the UOG leadership for your continued advocacy for UOG and its important mission—no investment has higher returns than education—and UOG is at least part of the solution to every problem facing Guam and the region

PHYSICAL FACILITIES REPORT TO THE BOR – 13 Feb 2020

-The Physical Facilities Committee met on Feb 10, 2020.

-Approved the minutes from November 12, 2019 committee meeting with some changes.

Facilities Management and Services (FMS) Update:

-A management spreadsheet was provided and revisions were made to it for future updates. Major updates included:

-<u>School of Engineering and Student Success Center</u>. Both projects are currently on hold pending final approval of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Loan process. Responses to the financial payment plan and feasibility study are remaining actions to submit to them for final review.

-<u>Cultural Repository</u>. There were three applicants to the Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Performance Based Design-Build project for the Guam Cultural Repository. Review of application packets are completed and a contract is being negotiated with the best qualified applicant – Reliable Builders, Inc.

-<u>Water and Environmental Research Institute (WERI) and Deskubre Building</u>. There is a United States Economic Development Administration (US EDA) Grant submitted to fund 80% for Design-Bid-Build projects. The WERI and Deskubre buildings have passed the first rounds of approval by US EDA and the projects are looking good for final approval.

- The WERI building is a new construction to relocate WERI from the bottom of the Marine Lab hill to across the street from the English Language Institute building in Dean Circle. This will consist of an expanded water testing lab, offices, meeting rooms, and some classrooms.
- The Deskubre building is a new construction to support the International and Professional (PIP) Program and the Office of Research and Sponsored Programs (ORSP). The facility will provide much needed classroom space, offices, and meeting rooms.

-<u>International Dorm</u>. This is a new dorm to primarily support PIP visiting students as well as regional students and visitors. This Dorm is being reviewed for a Private-Public-Partnership (PPP) opportunity. If the determination looks good for a PPP, a Request for Proposal (PPP) will be initiated.

-<u>School of Health (SOH) Expansion</u>. This is another project being submitted under the US EDA Grant. The packet is being prepared as a third project. This project may not get approved this time around but will be submitted for an opportunity if more funding might be available.

-Bordallo Expansion to Micronesian Area Research Center (MARC) / Robert F. Kennedy (RFK) <u>Library</u>. This is an expansion to archive donated historical documents and articles from former Congresswoman Bordallo, who will be donating funds for the expansion. Reviewing possible locations and a conceptual plan.

-<u>2d Floor Science Building</u>. This is an expansion for two large labs/classrooms for the College of Natural and Applied Sciences (CNAS). Final stages of installing tables and lab counters, and punchlist items are being done. Anticipate completion with occupancy by end of Mar 2020.

-<u>Triton Engagement Center (TEC) and Fine Arts Facility</u>. These are potential projects pending funding sources with possible bond funding.

- The TEC is a new facility located in Dean Circle cliffline to expand research, outreach, and educational support.
- Fine Arts Facility. This will be a new facility to replace the current Fine Arts Facility to expand capacity of the arts programs, class lecture space, and community-type venue.

-<u>Storm Water Outfall Project</u>. This projects mitigates the storm water outfall along the cliffline property near CNAS. Project is completed pending a few punch-list items. Completion this week.

-<u>Life Cycle / Preventive Maintenance Plan</u>. These are projects that have priorities to review, repair, and/or replace air conditioning systems, campus lighting, generators, and water pumps.

- Air Conditioning Systems. Current projects being worked on are units at College of Liberal Arts and Social Sciences (CLASS); College of Natural and Applied Sciences (CNAS); School of Education (SOE); and School of Business and Public Administration (SBPA).
- Generators. SBPA and generator that supports the RFK Library, Micronesian Area Research Center (MARC), Professional and International Programs (PIP), and Computer Center.
- Water Pump. System that supports main campus water supply.

FMS continues to wrestle with Air Conditioning failures across the campus. Much of the equipment was installed in 2011 in conjunction with the American Recovery and Re-investment Act of 2009 and now seems to be all failing at the same time. There are split units throughout the School of Education building and the University is assessing whether or not the University to try to repair and maintain the central air conditioning system

Procurement Transactions and Contracts Report:

-The committee reviewed the FY2019 Procurement Report and contracts as of Dec 31, 2019. The contracts were mostly contracts where the University is performing contract work or grant work on behalf of a third party. One exception is the contract amendment with Bascon where UOG is continuing to negotiate the final change order request. The other exception is a contract wherein tax credits are being used to allow the Guam Basketball Association in conjunction with the Department of Parks and Recreation and the Department of Public Works to make improvements to the Calvo Fieldhouse in preparation for a basketball tournament in February. Changes include upgraded lighting, time clocks on the goals, new goals, and a new finish and new lines on the hardwood floor.

UOG Green Update:

-A handout was provided on the Unites Nation's (UN's) sustainability goals and the Green Growth Initiative. A flyer on the 2020 UOG Conference on Island Sustainability was also provided. It will be held on Mar 31-Apr 3, 2020 at the Hyatt Regency Guam.

IT Infrastructure Update:

-The VPAF reported that the IT group is continuing to provide uninterruptible power supply units at key network infrastructure stations across the campus. Wireless Access Points are continuing to be improved to try and address networking issues across the campus.

House Purchase:

-Vice President for Administration and Finance (VPAF) Randy Wiegand mentioned that one of the private properties within the campus was put up for sale. The VPAF said that the University didn't have funds set aside for a purchase such as this, but it had been determined that the University also couldn't allow the property to be placed in the hands of an outside party. The VPAF said he has been in discussions with the Endowment Fund, the Guam Board of Accountancy, and the SBPA Dean to discuss ways to purchase the property. The University is intending to purchase the property. The University was in discussions with Regent Felix to determine an appropriate price range for the property. This property is currently owned by a UOG retired faculty member and is next to the UOG's English Language Institute (ELI) building. Map of location was provided.